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STATE OF WISCONSIN
IN SUPREME COURT

Case Nos. 96-0600-CR & 96-1509-CR

STATE OF WISCONSIN,
Plaintiff-Respondent,
V.

GERALD J. VAN CAMP,

Defendant-Appellant-Petitioner,

BRIEF OF DEFENDANT-APPELLANT-PETITIONER

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

l. Whether the state established by clear and convincing
evidence that Van Camp’s no contest plea was knowingly and
voluntarily entered and that withdrawal is not necessary to correct a
manifest injustice.

The circuit court denied Van Camp’s motion to withdraw his
no contest plea and the court of appeals affirmed.

2. Are the feelings of the alleged victim and what the
court perceives as the probable outcome upon trial relevant consider-

ations in determining whether withdrawal of a no contest plea is
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required under Stafe v. Bangert, 131 Wis.2d 246, 389 N.W.2d 12
(1986).

In denying Van Camp’s motion to withdraw his no contest
plea, the circuit court relied in large part upon these considerations.
The court of appeals did not address this issue, finding that the other
factors relied upon by the circuit court could have justified its

decision.

STATEMENT ON ORAL ARGUMENT
AND PUBLICATION

This Court having deemed the issues in this case significant
enough to warrant review, both oral argument and publication are
appropriate. See Wis. Stat. (Rules) 809.22 & 809.23.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On September 7, 1994, the state filed a criminal complaint
charging one count of kidnapping as party to a crime against Gerald
Van Camp, a man 62 years old, with a fourth grade education, an 1Q
of 84, and no prior arrests (R1; see R18:62-63).! See Wis. Stat.

§§939.05 & 940.31. The charge was based upon the claim that Van

' Throughout this brief, references to the appeal record will take the
following form: (R__: ), with the R__ reference denoting record document
number and the following :__ reference denoting the page number of the
document. Where the referenced material is contained in the Appendix, it will
be further identified by Appendix page number as App. _.

2.
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Camp and Raphael Rottier drove to the Eau Claire home of Ronald
Geurts and forced him to accompany them in Van Camp’s automo-
bile for approximately three hours of abuse, all under the mistaken
belief that Geurts was seeing Van Camp’s ex-girlfriend (R1).

The state filed an information reflecting this charge on
November 15, 1994 (R4), and subsequently filed an amended
information on November 18, 1994, adding a count of false imprison-
ment in violation of Wis, Stat. §940.30 (R7). Just prior to trial, the
state filed yet another amended information, modifying the intent
allegation of the kidnapping count (R10).

The case proceeded to a jury trial on April 18, 1995, before
Hon. Eric J. Wahl, Circuit Judge, and the state presented its case that
day (R12). After the jury left for the day, the prosecutor offered to
resolve the case with a plea to the false imprisonment charge
(R41:39), and Van Camp’s defense counsel, Attorney Owen Wil-
liams, agreed to recommend that offer to his client (R41:47).

The next morning, counsel for the parties informed the court
that they had reached an agreement under which Van Camp would
plead no contest to the faise imprisonment count, and the kidnapping
count would be dismissed and read-in for purposes of sentencing
(R15:2). After a brief colloquy, during which the court determined

-3-
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that Van Camp in fact said he would piead no contest to false
imprisonment, that no threats or promises were made, and that he
understood that the court could impose “the maximum sentence,” the
court accepted the plea (R15:2-4; App. 33-35). After the prosecutor
noted "some ... reticence” on the part of Mr. Van Camp, the court
also discussed the necessary elements and factual basis for the plea
(R15:5-6; App. 36-37).

On July 21, 1995, the court withheld sentence and placed Van
Camp on probation for a period of three years, with the condition
that he serve nine months jail time with Huber privileges for work
and counseling. The court also imposed a fine of $1,000 plus costs
and ordered restitution. {R18:87-88; R20:1; R21).

Van Camp timely filed his Notice of Intent to Pursue Post-
Conviction Relief on August 10, 1995 (R22). See Wis. Stat. (Rule)
809.30(2Xb).

By motion dated December 20, 1995, Van Camp sought to
withdraw his no contest plea on the grounds of manifest injustice and
as a matter of right on the grounds that it was not freely, voluntarily
and knowingly entered. He also sought to withdraw that plea as the
result of ineffective assistance of trial counsel. (R28, 29, 31).
Following an evidentiary hearing on February 9, 1996 (R41), the

4-
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circuit court, Judge Wahl. presiding, denied the motion (R41:69-84;
R42; App. 9, 15-31).

At the post-conviction hearing, the prosecutor conceded that
the plea colloquy was inadequate, so that Van Camp had made out
a prima facie case under State v. Bangert, 13} Wis.2d 246, 389
N.W.2d 12 (1986) (R41:32). The state called Attorney Williams to
testify in an attempt to meet its burden to show that the plea
nonetheless was knowingly, voluntarily and intelligently entered
(R41:32-34; see R41:36-61).

Attorney Williams testified that he eventually was able to
overcome his client’s reluctance to plead (R41:41-42). Williams did
not recall discussing Van Camp’s constitutional rights at that time,
nor did he go through a guilty plea questionnaire and waiver of rights
form with him (R41:43, 46-47). He claimed, however, to have gone
through a "litany" of rights with Van Camp when they first met on
September 10, 1994, some seven months prior to the plea (R41:49-
50, 33). Williams also claimed to have discussed both the maximum
penalty for false imprisonment and the effect of the read-in with Van
Camp during the meeting on April 19, 1995, just prior to entering the
plea (R41:55, 56).

Van Camp proffered the testimony of his two sons. Van

-5-
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Camp’s sons were present when Attorney Williams presented the plea
offer to their father the morning of April 19, 1995. The entire
discussion that day took only about ten minutes, and there was no
mention of the maximum penalty for false imprisonment. Rather, the
entire inducement for the plea mentioned by Attorney Williams was
that Van Camp’s insurance company would cover any civil claim if
he accepted the plea. Mr. Williams did not advise Van Camp of the
rights he would waive by pleading no contest, such as the right to a
unanimous verdict, the right to testify and the right to call witnesses.
Nor did he advise Van Camp of the legal effect of a read-in.
(R41:62-65; App. 11-14).

In addition to the facts set forth in that proffer, which the
court accepted as "true fact" with the agreement of the prosecutor
(R41:65; App. 14), the circuit court found that the plea was entered
after a full day of trial. during which Van Camp did exercise manyv
of his constitutional rights (R41:73-74; App. 19-20). The court
found that the state had presented a strong case (id.).

The court also found that, while it did not inform Van Camp
of the possible penalties for false imprisonment, they were set forth
in the amended information (R41:75; App. 21). While noting that

"maybe these arguments would have more merit" if it had imposed

-6-
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a longer sentence than Van Camp thought was available (R41:75;
App. 21), the court made no findings regarding Van Camp’s
knowledge on that point and no evidence was presented concerning
it.

The court found that Van Camp was not informed of the effect
of the read-in. The court concluded, however, that such lack of
knowledge was irrelevant. (R41:75; App. 21).

Throughout its oral decision, the circuit court emphasized its
belief that decision on withdrawal motions should be outcome based.
In other words, according to the circuit court, such motions should
not be granted where, as the court believed the case 10 be here, a trial
likely would result in conviction anyway (R41:74, 78, 81. 83; App.
24, 27, 29):

I believe before a withdrawal is a reasonable possibil-

ity, before withdrawal should be reasonably granted,

rather there should be some indication that the ultimate

outcome of the case will be affected.
(R41:78; App. 24).

This said, the court stated its belief, in conclusory terms, "that
Mr. Van Camp entered his plea knowingly and voluntarily" (R41:80;

App. 26), and that the Bangert test was met (R41:84; App. 30). The

court explained that this did not constitute a finding that Van Camp
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knew any particular fact or right, but rather that he generally knew
what he was doing:

That does not mean that he necessarily understood

every nuance of what this all meant or that what

exactly a read-in could do or how that would reflect,

but overall, he entered it knowingly and voluntarily.
(R41:80; App. 26).

On or about February 26, 1996, Van Camp filed with the
circuit court his notice of appeal from the final judgment and from
the "order denying postconviction relief on February 9, 1996" (R34).*
[t subsequently was discovered, however, that the circuit court had
not entered a written order denying Van Camp’s postconviction
motion. The circuit court finally entered such an order on May 17,
1996 (R42; App. 9), Van Camp filed a new notice of appeal from
that order on or about the same date (R60),’ and the court of appeals
ordered the cases consolidated.

By unpublished decision dated December 3, 1996, the court of
appeals affirmed (App. 1-6). Apparently overlooking the circuit

court’s express findings to the contrary (R41:62-65. 75; App. 11-14,

21), that court asserted that Van Camp’s counsel in fact informed

: That appeal became Appeal No. 96-0600-CR.

’ That appeal became Appeal No. 96-1509-CR.

8-
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him of both the two-year maximum sentence for false imprisonment

and the effect of the read-in (App. 4).

ARGUMENT
THE LOWER COURTS ERRED IN DENYING
VAN CAMP’S MOTION TO WITHDRAW HIS NO
CONTEST PLEA UNDER STATE v. BANGERT,
131 Wis.2d 246, 389 N.W.2d 12 (1986)

In State v. Bangert, 131 Wis.2d 246, 389 N.W.2d 12 (1986),
this Court reviewed the law regarding the requirements for accepting
guilty pleas and set forth the analysis to be applied when a defendant
seeks to withdraw such a plea based upon the court’s failure to
comply with those requirements. Van Camp’s request to withdraw
his no contest plea was premised upon that analysis. The lower
courts, however, failed properly to apply that analysis. First, they
failed to hold the state to its burden of proving that Van Camp’s plea
in fact was knowingly and voluntarily entered. Second, in denying
Van Camp’s motion, the circuit court injected into the Bangert
analysis consideration of the complainant’s feelings and the probabil-
ity of conviction at trial. Neither of those considerations is proper on
such a motion.

A.  The Applicable Legal Standard Under Bangert

The analysis in Bangert enforces the statutory requirements for
9
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the taking of a plea in Wis. Stat. §971.08, as well as the additional
mandatory requirements imposed under the Court’s supervisory
powers. Under that standard, the defendant first must show that the
tnal court failed to comply with those requirements and allege that
he or she did not know or understand the information which should
have been provided. 389 N.W.2d at 26. The burden then shifts to
the state to prove by clear and convincing evidence that the plea in
fact was knowing, voluntary and intelligent. Id.:

Whenever the Section 971.08 procedure is not under-
taken or whenever the court-mandated duties are not
fuifilled at the plea hearing, the defendant may move to
withdraw his plea. The initial burden rests with the
defendant to make a prima facie showing that his plea
was accepted without the trial court’s conformance with
Sec. 971.08 or other mandatory procedures as stated
herein. . .. Where the defendant has shown a prima
Jacie violation of Section 971.08(1)(a) or other manda-
tory duties, and alleges that he in fact did not know or
understand the information which should have been
provided at the plea hearing, the burden will then shift
to the state to show by clear and convincing evidence
that the defendant’s plea was knowingly, voluntartly,
and intelligently entered, despite the inadequacy of the
record at the time of the plea’s acceptance. ... The
state may then utilize any evidence which substantiates
that the plea was knowingly and voluntarily made. In
essence, the state will be required to show that the
defendant in fact possessed the constitutionally required
understanding and knowledge which the defendant
alleges the inadequate plea colloquy failed to afford
him.

389 N.W.2d at 26.
-10-
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Van Camp’s motion to withdraw his plea, however, was based
not simply upon state criminal procedure as expressed in Bangert, but
upon his state and federal rights to due process as well. As the Court
recognized in Bangert, 389 N.W.2d at 19, "the constitutional validity
of a plea must be measured in terms of whether it was entered
knowingly, voluntarily, and intelligently.” "If a defendant shows that
he has been denied a relevant constitutional right, he may withdraw
his plea as a matter of right." State v. Carter, 131 Wis.2d 69, 389
N.W.2d 1, 5, cert. denied, 479 U.S. 989 (1986). "The trial court
reviewing the motion to withdraw has no discretion in the matter in
such an instance.” Bangert, 389 N.'W.2d at 30; Carrer, 389 N.W.2d
at 5.

"On appellate review, the issue of whether a plea was
voluntarily and intelligently entered is a question of constitutional
fact." Bangert, 389 N.W.2d at 30. Such questions are reviewed de
novo, although "[tthe trial court’s findings of evidentiary or historical
facts will not be upset on appeal unless they are contrary to the great
weight and clear preponderance of the evidence.” /d. To the extent
the trial court failed to make express findings of fact,

this court on appeal may adopt one of three courses:

(1) Affirm the judgment if clearly supported by the
preponderance of the evidence, (2) reverse if not so

-11-
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supported, or (3) remand for the making of findings
and conclusions.

Chuck Wagon Catering, Inc. v. Raduege, 88 Wis.2d 740,277 N.W.2d
787, 791 (1979).
B.  The State Failed To Meet Its Burden Of Proving
Van Camp Entered His Plea Knowingly, Voluntarily
and Intelligently
As the state conceded below, the plea colloquy was woefully
inadequate (R41:32; see App. 3). The colloquy was perfunctory at
best, with the circuit court failing to advise Van Camp of any of the
rights he would waive,* the permissible range of punishments,® or the
effect of the read-in of the kidnapping charge (see R15:2-6; App. 33-
37).
The controlling question under Bangert. therefore, is whether

the state bore its burden of proving by clear and convincing evidence

) As the Court explained in Bangert, "{a] person must know and understand
that constitutional rights are waived by the plea in order for the plea to be
voluntarily and intelligently made.” 389 N.W.2d at 24. Accordingly, "[i]t is
incumbent upon the trial court to inform the defendant of his rights and ascertain
that he understands they are being waived." Id. at 25.

* "At the time of entry of plea, a defendant is entitled to know what might
or could happen to him or her.” State v. Mohr, 201 Wis.2d 690, 549 N.W.2d 497,
500 (Ct. App. 1996} (citation omitted). See Wis. Stat. §971.08(1)a) (obligation
of court to inform defendant of "potential punishment if convicted”). See also
Birts v. State, 68 Wis.2d 389, 228 N.W.2d 351, 354 (1975) (manifest injustice,
entitling plea withdrawal, where plea entered without knowledge sentence actually
imposed could be imposed).

-12-
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that Van Camp’s plea nonetheless was knowingly, voluntarily, and
intelligently entered, i.e., that he in fact knew and understood the
possible penalty, the nature and effect of the read-in, and the
constitutional rights he was waiving as a result of his plea. Bangert,
389 N.W.2d at 26.

Despite its ultimate legal conclusion, the circuit court’s express
factual findings demonstrate that the state failed to meet this burden.
The circuit court expressly held that Van Camp was not informed of
the effect of the read-in (R41: 75; App. 21). With the state’s
concurrence, the court also accepted as “true fact” the proffer of the
defendant’s sons that Williams did not inform Van Camp during the
plea discussions of either the possible penalties upon conviction of
false imprisonment or the effect of the read-in (R41:62-65; App. 11-
14).

The circuit court’s actual findings thus implicitly rejected
Attorney Witliams’ allegations to the contrary (see R41:55-56) and
the court of appeals’ reliance upon those allegations {(see App. 4) is
misplaced. The circuit court’s express findings are amply supported
by credible evidence in the record, as well as the state’s stipulation,

and thus cannot be dismissed as "contrary to the great weight and
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clear preponderance of the evidence." Bangert, 389 N.W.2d at 30.%

3

The court of appeals’ decision in this regard appears to be based not
simply upon a misreading of the record, but upon a misunderstanding of faw as
well. That court never actually recites the circuit court’s findings of historical
fact, but instead reasons backwards from the lower court’s legal conclusion that
the plea was knowing and voluntary to a determination that it must have found
facts necessary to support that legal conclusion:

The trial court in this case heard the testimony and implicitly but
unmistakably accepted trial counsel’s testimony because the court
concluded that Van Camp’s plea was knowing and voluntary.

(App- 4).

Such an analysis, simply presuming legally sufficient factual findings
from an ultimate legal conclusion, would virtually destroy the concept of appellate
review and, not surprisingly, is not the faw. Where, as here, the circuit court
makes express findings of historical fact, the appellate court must credit those
findings unless they are "contrary to the great weight and clear preponderance of
the evidence.” Bangert, 389 N.W.2d at 30; see, e.g., Wurtz v. Fleischman, 97
Wis.2d 100, 293 N.W.2d 155, 159 {1980). See also McMuririe v. McMurtrie, 52
Wis.2d 577, 191 N.W.2d 43, 45 (1971} {remand for more detailed factual
findings inappropriate where trial court made express findings of fact contrary to
its Jegal conclusions).

Where, on the other hand, the circuit court failed to make the necessary
findings of fact the proper appellate course of action depends on the record. “In
appropniate circumstances, even though a trial court did not make a particular
finding, [the appellate court] may assume that such a finding was made implicitly
in favor of its decision.” Ritt v. Dental Care Associates, 5.C., 199 Wis.2d 48,
543 N.W.2d 852, 865 (Ct. App. 1993), citing State v. Hubanks, 173 Wis.2d 1, 27,
496 N.W.2d 96, 105 (Ct. App. 1992). cert. denied 510 U.S. 830 (1993).
Accordingly, if the unstated factual conclusion necessary to support the lower
court’s legal conclusion is "clearly supported by the preponderance of the
evidence," then the Court may affirm. Chuck Wagon Catering, 277 N.W.2d at
791. See, e.g.. Matier of Esiate of Villwock, 142 Wis.2d 144, 418 NW.2d I, 3
(Ct. App. 1987) (implicit finding where neither expert witness’ qualifications nor
his opinion were challenged).

If such a finding would not be so supported by the record, then the Court
may teverse. Chuck Wagon Catering. 277 N.W.2d at 791 (reversing where
unstated factval findings necessary to support trial court’s Jegal conclusions "were
against the great weight and clear preponderance of the evidence"). However,
"[wlhen an appellate court is confronted with inadequate findings and the
evidence respecting material facts is in dispute, the only appropriate course for
the court is to remand the cause to the trial court for the necessary findings."
Wuriz, 293 N.W.2d at 159 (citations omitted). See also Rirt, 543 N.W.2d at 865

(continued...)

-14-
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Given the circuit court’s express factual findings, the state
failed to meet its burden. Van Camp did not know the effect of the
read-in and neither the court nor his attorney told him the possible
penalties upon conviction for false imprisonment. While the circuit
court noted that the amended information states the maximum penalty
for that charge (R41:75; App. 21), the record contains no evidence
that Van Camp ever read that document. Indeed, it does not even
appear that he was officially arraigned on that charge.” Speculation
that Van Camp may have read that document cannot substitute for
the requisite proof by clear and convincing evidence that he in fact
knew the potential penalties. Bangert, 389 N.W.2d at 24 ("knowl-
edge ... cannot be inferred or assumed on a silent record”). Accord-
ingly, Van Camp was entitled to withdraw his plea under Bangerr.

The circuit court’s express findings, as well as the insuffi-
ciency of the evidence on this point, also demonstrate that the state

failed to meet its burden of proving that Van Camp knew and

*(...continued)

(refusing to assume circuit court made necessary factual finding when it rested its
decision on a different basis and there were conflicting reasonable inferences to
be drawn from the evidence).

? The circuit court’s suggestion that the maximum penalty for the false
imprisonment count was stated in the original complaint (R41:75; App. 21) is

inaccurate as that document included only the kidnapping charge (RI; see
R41:54). That suggestion thus is clearly erroneous.

-15-
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understood the constitutional rights he was waiving by his piea.
Once again, the court found as "true fact” the proffer that Attorney
Williams did not explain those rights to Van Camp at the time he
discussed the plea with his client (R41:62-65; App. 11-14). Williams
did not dispute that (R41:43), testifying that he could not recali
discussing those rights at the time of the plea, and that he did not use
a plea questionnaire and waiver of rights form at that time (R41:43,
46-47).

Based upon his “invariable” practice, however, Williams
claimed to have gone through the "litany of rights" with Van Camp
when they first met soon after his arrest some seven months earlier
(id.:49-50, 53):

Q. Could you please relate to the Court what vou
include in that litany?

A. Sure. They have a presumption of innocence.
They have the right to remain silent throughout
the entire prosecution. They have a right to
have an attorney represent them. If they cannot
afford one, they have a right to presumption of
innocence. Tnal by jury of tweive. Right to
unanimous verdict of that. Right to have their
guilt proved beyond a reasonable doubt. Right
to compel the attendance of witnesses by writ of
subpoena. That’s -- unanimous verdict, twelve,
oh, they have the right to have their guilt proved
beyond a reasonable doubt and, in fact, there is
a presumption of innocence that must be
overcome by proof beyond a reasonable doubt.

-16-
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(R41:49-50).

The circuit court made no express finding in this regard.
Reliance upon Williams® allegations of having provided Van Camp
a "litany of rights" some seven months prior to the plea, however,
does not satisfy the state’s burden of proving Van Camp’s knowledge
and understanding of those rights at the time of the plea. As this
Court explained in State v. Bartelt, 112 Wis.2d 467, 334 N.W.2d 91,
94 n.2 (1983), "the fact that a defendant was told sometime earlier
of his rights is not necessarily determinative of whether he under-
stood those rights at a later time."

Reliance upon Williams’ claimed litany to Van Camp would
not satisfy the state’s burden in any event. "For a waiver of
constitutional rights to be valid, the plea must be based on '"an
intentional relinquishment or abandonment of a known right or
privilege."’"  Bangert, 389 N.W.2d at 22 (citations omitted).
Accordingly, "[w}hether a plea is voluntary will in part depend on
whether the defendant understands the nature of the constitutional
protections he is waiving." Id. at 25.

The state is required to prove that the defendant possessed

both the knowledge and the understanding of the relevant constitu-

tional rights. Bangert, 389 N.W.2d at 24-25, 26. As this Court
-17-
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explained:

Understanding must have knowledge as its antecedent;

knowledge, like understanding, cannot be inferred or

assumed on a silent record. [Citation omitted]. Con-
versely, it is not enough merely to inform the defendant

or point to a portion of the transcript or other evidence

which indicates that the defendant possesses knowledge

of the nature of the charge; the court must also ascer-

tain the defendant’s understanding of that information.

Id at 24.

Thus, even if the record were sufficient to demonstrate that,
at some point in time, Attorney Williams gave him a complete and
accurate litany of his rights. nothing suggests that Van Camp in fact
had the necessary understanding of those rights. "[U]nderstanding[]
cannot be inferred or assumed on a silent record,” Bangert, 389
N.W.2d at 24 (citation omitted), and such is especially true here.
Van Camp is but a simple farmer with an IQ of 84 and a fourth
grade education, and who had never before been in trouble with the
law (R18:62-63). Williams’ litany, moreover, is at best a conclusory,
incomplete,® and confusing muddle which even those educated in the

law would have a difficult time following (R41:49-50). See supra.

To the extent that the circuit court implicitly found that Van

: The litany, for instance, omits Van Camp’s rights to testify on his own

behalf and otherwise to put on a defense other than by subpoenaing witnesses (see
R41:49-50).
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Camp in fact did know and understand the constitutional rights he
was giving up, therefore, that "finding” is not supported by a
preponderance of the evidence. The proper course thus is to reverse
denial of Van Camp’s motion to withdraw his no contest plea. E.g.,
Chuck Wagon Catering, 277 N.W.2d at 791.
C. Concern For The Complainant’s Feelings And A
Perception That The Defendant Would Have Been
Convicted Anyway Are Not Appropriate
Considerations on a Motion to Withdraw a Plea
The circuit court made clear from the beginning of the post-
conviction hearing that it viewed Mr. Geurts’ feelings and its
perception that Van Camp had no viable defense to the false
imprisonment charge as major factors contributing to its decision
whether to permit withdrawal of Van Camp’s plea:
THE COURT: Ms. Robinson, if 1 grant

your motion what happens? Does the process that
you're discussing. is it outcome-based at all? Does Mr.

MS. ROBINSON: Van Camp? Have I re-
viewed that with him? Is that your --

THE COURT: No. Does Mr. Varn Camp
have some defenses?

THE COURT: . . . | understand your
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argument. I read those cases very carefully. But 'm
troubled generally by where would we go? We’d start
all over. I heard the, essentially the jury trial, from the
State’s case was all but completed. I don’t know if
Mr. Pelrine had formally rested but from reviewing
back in the transcript, if he hadn’t, there might have
been some small details left to testify to. And I can’
[sic] imagine that this is going to accomplish anything
other than just simply start the process all over, create
more delays. So I'm curious to know. I mean is there
just kind of a ["]captain may I["] process? If we don’t
do it quite right, then we get to start all over?

(R41:7-10).
The court returned to this theme as the primary emphasis in
denying the motion:

And, Ms. Robinson, I'm more result driven than
I should be by this case because you make very good
arguments and got all the nice constitutional arguments
but I still have to go back in my mind and say what
will be the practical outcome? We’ll start all over.
Whether a jury would convict Mr. Van Camp on kid-
napping 1 don’t know. You’'re right, there is some
problem with that language. But they certainly in my
judgment beyond all reasonable doubt would convict
Mr. Van Camp on the false imprisonment.

* * *

It may not be necessary but [ believe, it may not
be necessary under the cases, but I believe before a
withdrawal " is a reasonable possibility, before
withdrawal should be reasonably granted, rather there
should be some indication that the ultimate outcome of
the case will be affected. ... There should be some
underlying contention that if the case starts over, Mr.
Van Camp would be exonerated or if he isn’t exoner-
ated, there would be a different outcome in the penalty.

-20-
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Mr. Van Camp’s new attorney has carefully
examined all the relevant cases, found all of the
language which puts Mr. Williams’ actions and my
actions in question. But there has not been the slightest
claim today that anything would change. . ..

* * *

. . . Mr. Geurts has been punished by all of these
delays and | know you told me at the outset it’s not a
balancing test and perhaps from a legal standpoint
you’re right.

On the other hand, I do think at some point the
rights of others have to be looked at in the process of
making legal decisions. And I do think that Mr.
Geurts’ rights have not been fully taken care of in this
matter because the man who tormented him, who
terrorized him for a period of several hours in a car
way back in September of 1994 is still looking for
more justice.

And as I indicated, I don’t know if a jury would
have convicted Mr. Van Camp of kidnapping. That
last bit of intent would have posed 1 think significant
problems for the prosecution. But I believe the evi-
dence on the false imprisonment was overwhelming and
that these technical objections are just delaying the
ultimate disposition of the case.

And for those reasons I'm going to deny the
motions. And let matters proceed as they should.

(R41:74, 78, 81: App. 20, 24, 27).
When Van Camp’s post-conviction counsel sought leave to
suppiement the record to address this novel harmiess error theory

(R41:81-83; App. 27-29), the court denied the request, noting that
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"again, I'm struck with just the simple reality that regardless of what
Mr. Williams or any other lawyer could have or would have done the
false imprisonment case was as strong a prosecution case as I've seen
in some thirty years of legal work" (R41:83; App. 29).

When the prosecutor attempted to recharacterize the court’s
reasoning into a finding that the Bangert test was met, the court
agreed. However, it expressly did not disavow defense counsel’s
interpretation of the court’s reasoning as adding an outcome
determinative/harmless error aspect to the analysis dictated by this
Court. (R41:84; App. 30).

While obviously substantial, if not controlling considerations
to the circuit court. the fact of the matter is that the complainant’s
feelings and the perceived lack of a defense at trial are irrelevant to
the question of whether a defendant must be permitted to withdraw
a plea under Bangert. Rather, the sole focus in such a motion is on
whether the plea was knowingly, voluntarily and intelligently entered.
See Bangerr, 389 NW.2d at 19. If it was not so entered. the
defendant is absolutely entitled to withdraw the plea and go to trial:

A defendant must ordinarily show a manifest injustice

in order to be cntitled to withdraw a guilty or no

contest plea. . .. When a defendant establishes a

denial of a relevant constitutional right, withdrawal of
the plea is a matter of right. The trial court reviewing
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the motion to withdraw has no discretion in the matter
in such an instance.

Id. at 30 (citation omitted). Neither the complainant’s desires nor the
perceived strength of the state’s case has any legitimate tendency to
make more likely that a plea was entered knowingly and voluntarily.

The circuit court’s outcome-determinative analysis, moreover,
is directly contrary to long-standing Wisconsin law. In 1967, this
Court adopted the "manifest injustice" standard of the American Bar
Association Project on Minimal Standards for Criminal Justice
Relating to Pleas of Guilty (Tentative Draft, February, 1967), Part I1.
State v. Reppin, 35 Wis.2d 377, 151 N.'W.2d 9, 13-14 (1967). That
standard is now contained in 11l ABA Standards for Criminal Justice
§14-2.1 (2d ed. 1980}, and provides that "the court should allow the
defendant to withdraw the [guilty] plea whenever the defendant, upon
timely motion for withdrawal, proves that withdrawal is necessary to
correct a manifest injustice.” /d §14-2.1(b). The standard sets forth
a number of nonexclusive grounds for which withdrawal would be

necessary to correct a manifest injustice. Id. §14-2.1(b)(ii).”

? Pursuant to Il ABA Standards for Criminal Justice §14-2.1(bXi1),

(ii) Withdrawal is necessary to correct a manifest injustice
whenever the defendant proves, for example, that:

(continued...)
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Both now and at the time this Court adopted the ABA
Standard in Reppin, that standard further made clear that the probable
outcome at trial is totally irrelevant to the question whether a
defendant should be allowed to withdraw his or her guilty plea.
Under that standard:

The defendant may move for withdrawal of the plea

without alleging that he or she is innocent of the charge

to which the plea has been entered.

Id §14-2.1(b)}(ii). As the Comment to that provision explains:

’(...continued)
(A) the defendant was denied the effective assistance of
counsel guaranteed by constitution, statute, or rule;

(B) the plea was not entered or ratified by the defendant
or a person authorized to so act in the defendant’s behalf:

(C) the plea was involuntary, or was entered without
knowledge of the charge or knowledge that the sentence
actually imposed could be imposed;

(D) the defendant did not recetve the charge or sentence
concessions contemplated by the plea agreement and the
prosecuting attorney failed to seek or not to oppose those
concessions as promised in the plea agreement; or

(E) the defendant did not receive the charge or sentence
concessions contemplated by the plea agreement, which
was either tentatively or fully concurred in by the court.
and the defendant did not affirm the plea after being
advised that the court no longer concurred and after
being called upon to either affirm or withdraw the plea:
or

(F) the guilty plea was entered upon the express
condition, approved by the judge, that the plea could be

withdrawn if the charge or sentence concessions were
subsequently rejected by the court.
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[1]f a manifest injustice has occurred, the defendant
should be aliowed to withdraw the plea even though the
defendant may actually be guilty of the offense and
without regard to whether innocence is alleged. In the
view of subparagraph (iii), even assuming the defen-
dant’s guilt, faimess requires that withdrawal of the
plea be allowed [under the circumstances constituting
manifest injustice].

[II ABA Standards at 14-58 to 14-59.

This Court held likewise in adopting those standards in
Reppin:

Reppin’s contentions fall within the exemplified scope

of the "manifest injustice” rule. He argues he was

denied effective assistance of counsel and that his plea

of guilty was involuntary in the sense it was not

intelligently made. True, the defendant has not alleged

as a ground for withdrawing his plea that he is inno-

cent of the charge to which the plea was entered, but

such an allegation is not a condition precedent to the

granting of the motion if manifest injustice is shown.
151 N.W.2d at 14 (emphasis added). The Court went on to state
directly that "[t]he test at this stage is not whether the defendant is
guilty but whether he was fairly convicted." /d.

The outcome-determinative analysis applied by the court below
essentially holds that a defendant is not entitled to a trial if the judge
concludes that he probably would be convicted anyway. Approving

such an analysis would be the moral and legal equivalent of directing

a verdict of guilt, which the courts may not do regardless how strong
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the state’s case may be. See, e.g., Sullivan v. Louisiana, 508 U.S.
275 (1993); United States v. Martin Linen Supply Co., 430 1.S. 564,
572-73 (1977), State v. Peete, 185 Wis.2d 4, 517 N.W.2d 149, 154
(1994). The right of an accused to a trial simply does not turn on the
perceived strength of the defense to be raised. See also Carpenters
v. United States, 330 U.S. 395, 408 (1947).

Applying a slightly different analysis reaches the same result.
The United States Supreme Court has distinguished between
"structural defects" which defy harmless error analysis and mere "trial
errors."  Sullivan, 508 U.S. at 281-82; Arizona v. Fulminante, 499
U.S. 279, 306-312 (1991). "Structural errors" are those which
"transcend[] the criminal process" by affecting the framework in
which the determination of guilt or innocence is made rather than
simply an error in the trial process itself. Fulminante, 499 U.S. at
310-11.

Not surprisingly, the Supreme Court has held that improper
denial of a jury trial is a type of structural defect, mandating reversal
without regard to the probable results of such a trial, rather than a
mere trial error:

Denial of the right to a jury verdict of guilt beyond a

reasonable doubt is certainly an error of the former

sort, the jury guarantee being a "basis protectio[n]"
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whose precise effects are unmeasurable, but without

which a criminal trial cannot reliably serve its function.

... The right to trial by jury reflects, we have said, “a

profound judgment about the way in which law should

be enforced and justice administered.” . . . The

deprivation of that right, with consequences that are

necessarily unquantifiable and indeterminate,
unquestionably qualifies as "structural error.”
Sullivan, 508 U.S. at 281-82 (citations omitted).

Of course, the fact that withdrawal is required when, as here,
the plea was not knowingly, voluntarily and intelligently entered does
not mean that the defendant receives some kind of unjustified
windfall. It merely places the issue of resulting prejudice in the
proper context; when a plea is not knowingly, voluntarily and
intelligently made, the defendant suffers actual prejudice from the
denial of the opportunity for a tral, regardless of what the ultimate
result of that trial might be. Cf Sullivan, supra.

The Court recently explained this fact in an analogous context.
See In [nterest of Kywanda F.. 200 Wis.2d 26, 546 N.W.2d 440
(1996). There, the trial court failed to inform the juvenile accused
of the right to substitution as required by statute at the time it
accepted her admission to a delinquency petition. Reversing the

court of appeals’ holding that such failure deprived the circuit court

of competency to proceed, 546 N.W.2d at 444-46, this Court held
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that noncompliance with the statutory requirement should be

\ '
considered harmless unless the accused establishes "actual prejudice
resulting from the error.” [d at 446. The Court made clear,
however, that the "prejudice” to which it referred concerned not the
likely ultimate resolution of the petition but the juvenile’s loss of the
opportunity for judicial substitution:

In the case of the right to substitution, we conclude that

actual prejudice is shown if it is established that the

juvenile was not told of the right and did not know of

that right. [Citations omitted]. Therefore, the preju-

dice suffered by the juvenile in such an instance is the

loss of the opportunity to exercise the right to

substitution due to the lack of knowledge of that right.

546 N.W.2d at 446; see id. at 446-48 (applying Bangert standard to
juvenile’s post-disposition motion to withdraw her admission to
delinquency petition).

To paraphrase this Court in Kywanda F., the prejudice suffered
by a pleading defendant when the circuit court fails to comply with
the requirements set forth in Bangert is the loss of the opportunity to
make a knowing. voluntary and intelligent decision whether to plead
guilty or to proceed to trial.

Returning the proper focus of the prejudice question to the
denial of an opportunity for a trial rather than on the likely results of
such a trial likewise retumns the issue of "harmless error” to the
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proper context. Bangert sought to insure that guilty pleas are entered
knowingly, voluntarily and intelligently by mandating certain
procedures at the guilty plea hearing. 389 N.W.2d at 20-21. The
Court went on to hold, however, that those procedures themselves are
not constitutional requirements, id. at 20, and that a plea is not
necessarily rendered unknowing or involuntary, and therefore
unconstitutionai, by the failure to comply with those procedures
where the defendant in fact knows the information which the circuit
court failed to provide. /d. at 25-27. Accordingly, if the state is able
to prove by clear and convincing evidence that the pleading defen-
dant actually had the constitutionally required knowledge and
understanding, the circuit court’s failure to provide that information
is harmless.'” While such a failure violates the statutory and judicial
mandates recognized in Bangert, it does not result in a constitutional
violation under those circumstances.

Issues of resulting prejudice and "harmless error” thus apply

10 Although not directly relevant to the issues on this appeal, Van Camp
notes that the harmless error analysis in Bangert, requiring a state showing of
harmlessness by only "clear and convincing evidence." 389 N.W.2d at 26-27,
appears to be at odds with the holding in State v. Dvess, 124 Wis.2d 525, 370
N.W.2d 222, 231-32 (1985) (state must prove harmlessness beyond a reasonable
doubt). See, e.g.. State v. Klessig, 199 Wis.2d 397, 544 N.W.2d 605, 608 n.2
(Ct. App. 1996) (applying Bangert rather than Dyess standard to question whether
defendant validly waived right to counsel), rev. granted, 201 Wis.2d 435, 549
N.W.2d 732 (1996).
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fully to non-constitutional issues in the Bangert context and the
required analysis under that decision already incorporates the
appropriate considerations of "harmless error." See also Klessig, 544
N.W.2d at 608; State v. Lopez, 196 Wis.2d 725, 539 N.W.2d 700
(Ct. App. 1995); State v. Issa, 186 Wis.2d 199, 519 N.W.2d 741,
745-46 (Ct. App. 1994); State v. Chavez, 175 Wis.2d 366, 498
N.W.2d 887, 888-89 (Ct. App. 1993). No further question of
"harmlessness” is required or appropriate. "The test at this stage is
not whether the defendant is guilty but whether he was fairly
convicted." Reppin, 151 N.W.2d at 14.

The circuit court’s conclusion that a motion to withdraw a
guilty plea should be denied absent a showing that an acquittal is
likely thus was wrong as a matter of law. Because the issue of
whether a plea was voluntarily and intelligently entered is one of
constitutional fact reviewed de novo, this Court itself may apply the
appropriate legal standard to the historical facts as found by the
circuit court. Bangert, 389 N.W.2d at 30. As already demonstrated
in the preceding section. such an application mandates reversal with

directions to permit Mr. Van Camp to withdraw his plea.
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CONCLUSION

By importing improper considerations of harmless error and
the complainant’s feelings into the analysis mandated by this Court
in Bangert, the circuit court committed an error of law and misused
its discretion. Under the proper legal standard, the circuit court’s
factual findings required it to grant Van Camp’s motion to withdraw
his plea.

Van Camp therefore respectfully asks that the Court reverse
the decisions below and remand with directions to grant Van Camp’s
motion to withdraw his plea.

Dated at Milwaukee. Wisconsin, April 7, 1997.

Respectfully submitted,

GERALD J. VAN CAMP, Defendant-
Appellant-Petitioner
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Nos. 96-0600-CR & 96-1509-CR
STATE OF WISCONSIN IN COURT OF APPEALS
DISTRICT Il
STATE OF WISCONSIN,
Plaintiff-Respondent,
v.
GERALD J, VAN CAMP,
Defendant-Appellant.

APPEAL from an order of the circuit court for Eau Claire County:

ERIC J. WAHL, Judge. Affirmed.
Before Cane, P.J., LaRocque and Myse, JJ.

PER CURIAM. Gerald J. Van Camp appeals an order denying his
motion for postconviction relief following a conviction and sentence t0 a charge of
false imprisonment for which sentence was withheld and a term of probation imposed.
Van Camp seeks to withdraw his plea of no contest on grounds that it was not entered

knowingly and voluntarily and also asserts a claim of ineffective counsel. We
Al A R
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conclude that the trial court acted within its discretionary authority in denying the
motion to withdraw the plea, and that Van Camp waived his right to pursue the

alleged ineffective counsel claim by entry of his plea. We therefore affirm the order.

Postconviction motions to withdraw a plea are addressed to the
discretion of the trial court and are permitted "only when necessary 10 correct a
manifest injustice.” State v. Clement, 153 Wis.2d 287, 292, 450 N.W.2d 789, 790
(Ct. App. 1989). This standard applies equally to no contest pleas. State v. Harrell,
182 Wis.2d 408, 414, 513 N.-W.2d 676, 678 (Ct. App. 1994). A manifest injustice
is established when a plea is involuntary or entered without knowledge of the charge
or the potential penalties. State v. Rock, 92 Wis.2d 554, 558-59, 285 N.-W.2d 739,
741-42 (1979). The defendant has the burden of proving grounds for withdrawal by

clear and convincing evidence. Id. at 559, 285 N.W.2d at 742.

A guilty plea must be made knowingly, voluntarily and intelligently.

State v. Bangert, 131 Wis.2d 246, 260, 389 N.W.2d 12, 19 (1986).

The initial burden rests with the defendant to make a
prima facie showing that his plea was accepted without
the trial court’s conformance with sec. 971.08, STATS.,
or other mandatory procedures as stated herein. Where
the defendant has shown a prima facie violation of sec.
971.08(1)Xa) or other mandatory dutics, and alleges that
he in fact did not know or understand the information
which should have been provided at the plea hearing, the
burden will then shift to the state to show by clear and
convincing ecvidence that the defendant’'s plea was

S SIS B
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knowingly, voluntarily and intelligently entered, despite
the inadequacy of the record at the time of the plea’s
acceptance .... The state may also utilize the entire
record to demonstrate by clear and convincing evidence
that the defendant knew and understood the constitutional
rights which he would be waiving.

Id. at 274-75, 389 N.W.24 at 26 (citations omitted).

Whether a plea was entered correctly is a question of constitutional fact
and is examined inﬂependendy on appeal, while the circuit court’s findings of
historical facts are viewed under the clearly erroneous standard. See State v.
Kywanda F., 200 Wis.2d 26, 42, 546 N.W.2d 440, 448 (1996).

The State concedes that the plea colloquy is inadequate because
Van Camp was not informed of the constitutional rights he was waiving by entry of
the plea, the maximum penalty for the false imprisonment charge or the effect of
having a kidnapping charge that was dismissed “read in" for purposes of senteacing.

We conclude, however, that an examination of the entire record
demonstrates a knowing, voluntary and intelligent plea because that record supports

the trial court’s finding of historical facts.

Van Camp does not directly state what constitutional rights he was, in
fact, unaware of at the time of his plea. In any case, his trial attorney testified at the
postconviction hearing that he was certain that he had fully reviewed Van Camp’s
constitutional rights with him at some point prior to trial. Whether a defendant was

Idl
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advised of his rights is a mater of historical fact. Harrell. The trial court in this
case heard the testimony and implicitly but unmistakably accepted trial counsel’s
testimony because the court concluded that Van Camp’s plea was knowing and
voluntary.

The statutory penalty for false imprisonment was set forth both in the
amended complaint and the information. Trial counsel testified unequivocally that he
discussed the two-year maximum sentence for this crime during the discussion of the
plea bargain immediately preceding the plea hearing. Counsel also testified that he
also told Van Camp that the read-in of the kidnapping charge meant they could not
be reinstated, and that while the judge could consider it for purposes of sentencing,
the read-in would not subject Van Camp to any additional penalty beyond the
maximum for the false imprisonment. Counsel’s testimony was similarly implicity

accepted as credible by the trial court.

Apparently Van Camp is also contending that the trial court failed to
obtain an independent and express admission of guilt to the read-in kidnapping
charge. According to State v. Cleaves, 181 Wis.2d 73, 78, 510 N.W.2d 143, 145
(Ct. App. 1993), “when 2 defendant agrees to the read-in, he or she admits that the
crime occurred.” Here, Van Camp expressly agreed at the plea hearing to the plea
agreement whereby the kidnapping was to be dismissed but considered a read-in.

The trial court concluded that Van Camp merely regretied his plea and
sought to delay proceedings by bringing the motion to withdraw his plea. In any

& P ——
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case, Van Camp has failed to show a manifest injustice that required the trial court

to permit a plea withdrawal.

Van Camp argues in the alternative that a manifest injustice is
demonstrated by ineffective trial counsel. We agree with the State’s contention that
the no contest plea waived any challenge to the alleged grounds for ineffective
counsel. Van Camp contends that counsel failed to adequately research issues relating
to the elements of kidnapping, and should have realized the charge would ultimately
fail.

A no contest plea, knowingly and intelligently made, constitutes a
waiver of nonjurisdictional defects and defenses, including claims of constitutional
rights violations. State v. Skamfer, 176 Wis.2d 304, 311, 500 N.W.2d 369, 372 (Ct.
App. 1993). Further, Van Camp has failed to make a proper record to preserve the
claim by presenting the testimony of trial counsel in this respect. See State v.
Machkner, 92 Wis.2d 797, 804, 285 N.W.2d 905, 909 (Ct. App. 1979).

Van Camp’s ineffective counsel argur.nents on appeal do not go to the
validity of his plea, but to the performance of counsel prior to the plea bargain. At
the postconviction hearing, in fact, it was the State who called trial counsel over a
relevancy objection by Van Camp. There was no attempt to examine trial counsel
regarding the lack of preparation now claimed, and the trial court was advised that

the motion of ineffective counsel was included in the postconviction motion “only o
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preserve the issue for appeal.” There is therefore no need to address the matter

further. The order denying postconviction relief is therefore affirmed.
By the Court.—Order affirmed.

This opinion will not be published. RULE 809.23(1)}b)S, STATS.
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Date of Birth: 11-28-1933 - Case No.: 94CF000329
e B court [ sury found the defendant guitty of the following crima(s):
Fol. Detels)
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940.30 No Contest  FE 09-06-1994

2 Falss Imprisonment
[939.05 Party To)

IT IS ADJUDGED that the defendant is convicted on 04-18-1995 as found guilty and is sentenced as follows:

CL Sant. Dete Santence Langth Cancirent with/Censecytive W/ Commens Agsnoy
DOC

2 07-21-1995 Withheld, Probation 3 YR -
Ordered

Conditions of Sentence/Probation
Conditions
Ct. Condition Lan A Begin Date Sapin Time Commants
2 Jail Time 9 Jg EEI Stayed 30 dann
Service In an institution most
convenient to defendant’s
activities
Miscellaneous Conditions:
1n 8 Condition Commaents
2 Work Release / Huber Work release granted, release for counseling & any other release the
Law obation dept. feels is in order. Release permitted for 7 days & for 12
3
2 Prohibitions FINE + ASSESSMENTS: $1,230.00
COSTS: $20.00
VICTIMAWTTNESS SCHG: $70.00
RESTITUTION: $141.38 - Mr. Geurts’ out of pocket expenses & $803.70
= Blue Cross of Illinols
Sentance credit pur. 973.155 to be determined.
2 Prohibitions No contact, whatsosver, with Mr, Geurts or any of his relatives

. !mmi.mn.n—-na--m'-‘



STATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT BRANCH 2 EAU CLAIRE COUNTY
| JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION

Sentence Withheld, Probation Ordered
Case Mo.: 94CF000329

State vs Gerald J. VanCamp

Date of Birth: 11-28-1933

' 1T 1S ADJUDGED that 0 days sentence credit are due pursuant to § 873.155 Wisconsin Statutes.
T IS ORDERED that the Sheriff execute this sentence.

BY THE COURT:

Eric J Wahl,

Reymond L Pelrine , District Attomey y

Owen R Williams, Defense Attorney -7%‘“ »7&64&_4_,
Eircuit-Codrt-Judge/Clerk/Deputy Clerk

7-A1-95
Date
... . J ]|
T W Julpmant of Covlnten App- 8 — 03050, 03881, 37212, Oupwe m-—-h'--'
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STATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT EAU CLATRE COUNTY

BRANCH 11
Plaintiff

STATE OF WISCONSIN,

v, Case No. V4CF329 &2

GERALD J. VAN CANP, .
Defendant, _

ORDER .

The defendant having previously filed a sotion to withdraw plea of

no contest, the satter having been brought on for hearing on February
9, 1996, and the Court having considered the testimony presented at
that hearing as well as the arguments, authority, and supporting
docusents subsitted by the parties;

IT 1S HEREBY ORDERED, that the defendant's sotion to withdraw plea
of no contest is hereby denied. Defendant’s further request to

supplesent the record, sade at the hearing of February 9, 1996, is also

denied.

[t*
ﬂ%ris day of May, 1996.
4 e FILED

, CIRCUIT COURY
Snorshle Eric J. wahl EAU CLAIRE CNUNTY
cc: Attorney Mary Lou Robinson MAY1 71985

Suite 1005, 103 €. College Avenue

Appleton, WI 54911 DIANA J. MILLER

CLERK OF CIRCUIT COURT
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FILED

aﬁ‘%c&;ggéﬂm
APR 2 21936
| c1g§E%#¢§hg%#E§JURT
STATE OF WISCONSIN CIEEEEIthURT EAU CLAIRE COUNTY
STATE OF WISCONSIN, -
Pleintiff, -
Ve, - MOTION
8 /| GERALD J. VAN CANP, - CASE NO., 94CF329
7 Defendant. -

- Y S R A TR A A D AP e e T e e ke T A e R S W U T MR AR S A U e e e o e e Ay A D e SR R O N e N e SR e W b A e

The sbove-entitled matter coming on to be heard

10§ Sefore the Honorsble Eric J. Wahl, judge of the above-named court

Ml without & jury, on the 9th day of Fedruary, 1996, commencing st

12 |t the hour of 9:00 a.m., in the Courthouse in the City of Eau

| Claire, County of Eav Claire, State of Wisconsin,

14 APPEARANCES

-— e e e e s e aw e e

15 RAYMOND L. PELRIME, District Attorney, Esu Claire

18 Il County Courthouse, 721 Oxford Avenue, Eav Cleire, Wisconsin, 54701,
71l sppesring es counsel for and on behalf of the Stete.
L MARY LOU ROBINSON, Robinson Lew Firm, 103 East

College Avenue, Appleton, Wisconsin, 54911, asppesring ss counsel

for snd on behaslf of the defendant.
GEARALD J. VAN CAMP, the defendsnt, sppeering

personally.

JAN 4. BETTHAUSER
Court Reporter, Branch 2
Esu Cleire County Courthouse
721 Oxford Avenvs
Esv Claire, WI 54703
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record, we have under the prevailing record of B8anjert
estabiiéhing clearly satisfactorily and convincingly that
the Court informed the defendant of the nature of the
charge, and the components of the offense and also that

the Court has before it 8 record from which it could
conclude to that requisite degree of proof that the
defendant's plea was knowingly, voluntarily and intelligent]
made and he should not now be allowed to withdraw it.

MS. ROBINSON: 1I'd like to call a couple of
witnesses.

THE COURT: This was set for two hours or I mean
an hour as I believe. Are your witnesses going to be the
sons who are going to essentially testify that they did
not hear the, Mr. Williams give Mr. Van Camp his rights?

MS. ROBINSON: Yes. I could stste it real
succinctly. Your Honor, the sons would testify on the
evening before, on April the 18th, after Jerry Van Camp,
the defendant, called his attorney back and insisted
that he was not going to plead, Jerry was angry on the
phone with the lawyer and the Jlawver wanted nne nf *&r
sons to call. Then one of the sons called hack. I
helieve it was at the Best Western. £nd he talkecd to
him, who is called Buddy, which is Jerry, Junior, and
in that conversation said that's what he has to do and

your father is cracking up.

o D
2. — App. 11

y




10
"
12
13
M’h
15

o

17

19

an

24

The next morning they went to the courthouse
early. That is, the three of them went to the courthoLEé:
early thinking Mr. Williams made it clear he'd have to
talk more in the morning. He did not accept no for an
answer. They went very early and waited at various doors
trying to find Mr. Williams and couldn't find him. And
Mr. Van Camp, the defendant, was on the first floor. They
were trying to float around. The two young men ran into
Mr. Williams on the second floor and bes asked if they
could speak to him. They would testify today the entire
conversation they had with him from the time he saw
them was about five to nine in the morning until he
walked into the courtroom was ten minutes. And that from
the time they met with him, first alone, the door was
open and Jerry, the defendant, came down the hall. He
was summoned in. Mr. Williams said you have to plead.

I mean it's the right thing to do, whatever -- I'm not
purporting those were the words -- and Jerry said I don't
want to plead,

They had a brief colloocuv in which there was n~
mention even nof what the maximum penalty was ior false
imprisonment but the i1nducement to plead was that which
had been stated the evening hefore that Jrew Ryherg had
$3id, the insurance company's lawyer, there would be no

civil suit, that Jerry would have to oay if he pled to

63 __ App. 12
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this other charge, which by the way we're not asserting

to the truthfulness of it but this was their understanding
but that isn't, of course;.what hgbpened. But that wes,
indycement was relatgg_tq_the civil svit not to what the
penalty was going to be if he was foggg_gyiltv.

And that, in fact, Mr. Williams that morning
didn't, simply didn't have time to perhaps, among other
things, but didn't talk at all about /kights thet were
being waived, meximum penalty for the crime, unanimous
verdict, the effect of 8 read-in, the right to take the
witness stand in your own case, calling on the witnesses,
and the only ones that were there were the ones Jerry had
brought from his own area around the stete who were there
as character witnesses. Mr. Williams hadn't, in fact, -
subpoenaed any nor had he prepared Jerry.

But the fact is that this would be the substance
of their testimony and you might, if you want to, if you
can swear them, have them scknowledge in this shortened
time or whatever that's essentially it. And it's William
Van Camp whose age is --

VOICE: Thirty-three.

MS. ROBINSOM: Thirty-three. Ancd ferald, Junior,
whose age is --

VOICE: Thirty.

MS. ROBINSOM: 1Is rthirty. Roth of whoa are the

o oD, 13
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~ when he would have told this to him, didn't have spetific

two younger sons of Mr. Van Camp.

THE COURT: I don't think it's necessary to

swear them becsuse I don't think that that is in particulesr

great contradiction to what Mr. Williems testified. So
1 sccept that as beino a true fact/unless Mr. Pelrine has
a probles.

MR. PELRINE: No.
MS. ROBINSON: Then I have two other exhibits I'd

like to offer to the Court. I think they've been handed
up. One is the initisl bill and one is the second. I'm
oﬁly offering them for the sole purpose of establishing
that there weren't any conferences between Mr. Van Camp

and his attorney -- well, it speaks for itself. There was

an initial conference back in September and that there
weren't additionsl as he indicated within the two weeks
before trisl. For example, he hadn't prepsred him to
testify. So just to get & little.time perspective. I
think Mr. Williems indicat;d that it's generally his

practice to tell people these things. He didn’t know just

recollection and I'm offering this to the Court to give
you an opoortunity to see whether or not there would have
been prior to the 18th or 19th of April 8 sense of when

he would have had, and according to that, his last time

that he talked with the client was on the 28th of December

]
'65’:_App. -
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He chose to present thea in the way he sew fit. I haven't
cited a single case different than the defendent himself
cites. What point does defendant have other than to delay
these msatters esven further for an opportunity to do some-
thing he could have done in the past months?

THE COURT: And I think as you eptly pointed
out did do.

I think in dealing with Mr. Van Camp's motions we
have to review the file in its entirety. And this will
be rather lengthy but I think it's important that the
rationsle and thought process be adequately expressed so
that Appelleste Courts, if that becomes the route the case

goes, knows at lecast from my standpoint what I believe

happened,
Mr. Van Camp was initially charggd with a criminal

complaint on September 7, 1934.
Is that an incorrect dete?

MR. PELRINE: It was filed on the 7th. I believe
he appeared on the 8th.

THE COURT: Right.

Originally, 8 preliminery was scheduled for
November 7, 1994 but was not held until November 15th.
At 8ll times from the very beginning Mr. Van Cemp wos
represented by Attorney Owen Willisas of Amery, Wisconsin,

and Mr. Williams was privetely retained. And ss was noted

—

]
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here today in testimony and argument, Mr. Hillio.; is o
very experienced respected lewyer who's been involved in
. complex litigation in this part of the state for e long
time.

Between the date of the prelisminary end the trisl

date on April 18, 199§, there were sgvera; hearings on

various matters. The first issue that we need to desal

with in these proceedings is one of the claimed error
that I should not have allowed Mr. Pelrine to amend count
one of the Informetion shortly before the trisl. Count
one was the kidnapping compleint. And the smendment at
that time sought to change & portion of the original
charge to use the alternative lsngusjge. And that is
quote with intent to cause said person %o be held to
service against his will closed quote in liey of with
intent to cesuse saic person to be secretly-confined or
imprisoned.

Mr. Willisms -received notice of the Dist?ict
Attorney's intention to smend the Inforastion eight deys
before the trisl and st the hesaring for the postponesent
Mr. Hillins professed that the smendaent left him
unprepared to defend the charge. There was no explanation
then or now as to what sdditional preperstion would or
could be underteken. The smendment didn't charge s new

crime. 1t did not slter the nature of ths proof or change

-70-
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any 6f tﬁe potentisl defenses. It did not cause any new
or unforessen witnesses for either side.

And the only thing tﬁat I presuse could hsve been
sltered was the srgument becsuse I remember Mr. Williasms
meking the srgusent esrlier and thet is how covld this

man be secretly confined, mesning Mr. Geurts, when they

drove him sround in 8 cer. And he wasn't stuffed in the

trunk or something of thst kind. So s new legal argument
or 8 new srgument to s jury might have been heard as a
result of the smendment of the complaint but no new facts
or evidence would have besn sdduced st trial to the court.
§71.29 (2) 2llows amendment to an Information even auring
the trisl so long 8s the defeadant is not prejudiced.

Mr. Van Cemp now claims prejudice but doesn’t
substantiate how so. I have to sssume that there reslly
is nothing different from what I heve ssid end that is
that the jury perhaps would have heard s different closing
srgument hed the matter gone to trial than had the
originel unsmended cherge been presented.

On April 18, 1995 the jury weas selected. Mr.
Pelrine sade his opening statement. And I believe Mr.

Van Cemp, Mr. Willisms reserved his which is not uncomsmon.
And testimony was teken until spproximately four-thirty. .
And there's been some discussion on the record here todsy

8s to whather the State formelly rested st the end of the

o I E—
App. 17




10
1"
12
13
14
11
16
17
1)

L)

d;j end ;hether.it did or didn't, it did sppeasr st least
from my vantage point that the State's cese in chief wss,
had been presented or maybe there had been some little

sop up testimony or productibn of documents or something.

Then on the next dey ss we know at nine o-five

Mr. Williams indicated the plea agreement had been resched.

While the jury wes waiting for us in the jury room Mr.
Yan Csmp changed his ples from not guilty to no contest
on the charge of false imprisonment. The charge of

kidnapping was dismissed but wes read in for purposes of ~

. sentencing as we know here today.

The issue, so we're focused on it, is whether
Mr. Van Camp's plei was voluntary and now whether he
should be e2llowed to withdraw the ples. The difficulty
that this whole procedure places is that at least
initially it requires me to judge my conduct, grade my
own performance in eccepting the ples. I disagree with
what Ms. Robinson seid that the record esllows Mr. Van
Camp to withdraw it as » metter of right. I don't think
thst's been shown.

I do think what we need to focus on now is the

second issve and that is the discretionsry issue on

whether mssnifest injustice would occur by-not allowing it.

In dbringing this motion the defosndant has sesrched the

record thoroughly and has fouhd precedent to question

© A B
-72- App. 18
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. plea the State’s case wes in or nearly in,

such of what occurred on the morning of April 18th. But -
we hasve to keep in aind that, first of ell, from the day
of the initisl cherging until the trisl spproximately six

months passed. A little more than six aonths.

Agsin, Mr. Van Cemp was represented by experienced
counsel of his own choosing. At the tinme he.lntercd his
The testimony
of the victim, Mr. Geurts, which I heard on two occasions

was compelling., He positively identified Mr. Van Camp

as the man who came to his house, took his by force and
drove him sround the northern countryside.

The testimony of Lorraine Squires who appeasred at

the trisl. Ms. Squires was essentially Mr. Geurts®' alibi

witness for the dey in question when Hr. Van Camp thought

Mr. Geurts was somewhere else. Mr. Geurts at some point

in the rather lengthy ordeal persuaded Mr. Van Camp-that Ms
Squires covld sccount for his wheresbouts and explain

that he wasn't with Mr. Ven Cemp's girlfriend. Ms. Squires
identified Mr. Van Cemp positively and stated the
conversations that occurred in her presence.

The testimony of Mr. Geurts wss totaslly corroboratid
by Mr. Van Ceap's sccomplice, Mr. Rottier. The testimony
of police officers established thet Mr. Van Camp admitted
st least thst he had taken Mr. Geurts so that the
sdmissions would hsve been there. Thess witnesses were
e o —

pp
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In short, Mr. Ven Ceap did cxlrci{o seny of his

constitutionsl rights on April 18, 1995. He hed o Jury

trisl. He confronted his eccusers. And st sose point

you have to conclude that certsinly Mr. Willisms recognized

thet this wss, this cese wis & desd duck.
And, Ms. Robinson, I'a mors result driven then 1

should be by this case because you make vary -good arguaents

and got all thg nice constitutionsl srguments put I still

have to go back in my aind and say what will be the

_procticol outcono? We'll stsxrt sll over. Whether 3 jury

would convict Mr. Ven Camp on kidneppiiy~ Y don't know.
You're right, there is soae probles with that tangusgs.

But they certainly in my judgment deyond sll reasonsbls

doubt would convict Mr. Van Casp on ths false imprisonment.

The Appellete Courts have set forth the standards

we sre to use when we take @ guilty ples. And the

purpose of those stsndards is to ensure to the greastest

possible extent defendants sran't deprived of velusbdle

constitutionsl rights. And ssl ssid st the outset, it

seems to me sost of these cases involve younger defendants.

They involve people who sre confused or vnderrepresented

if not unrepresented. They involve ususl psople who sre

charged snd very shortly thereafter or on the ssms dey ore

brought to enter & ples. We have sudbstantisl time here.
-74-

0 IR N
App. 20 _




10

11

12

13

14

15

18

7”

18

1"

8 2 8 B

- in what went on here.

Mr. Yan Camp was not informed by me of the
maximum penslties fsced: Those maximums: I would, however,
point out were stated in the original complaint as well
as in the criminal, amended criminal Information and
also I would point out slthough you told me it didn't

matter that those maximum penalties uaré never a factor

I would say if Mr. Van Camp had pled and wes
expecting based on whatever conversations he had with
his attorney or other: the type of sentence he received,
and I did, in fact, give him a lengthy prison sentence,
that maybe these arguments would have more merit.

Mr. Van Camp apparently was informed or wasn't
informed of the effect of the read-in and, agsin, that
penalty really had nothing to do or the potential penalty -;
there was no enhancement, in short, of the penalty.

Other errors that have been-urged in these motions
center arvund Mr. Williams® conduct which frankly I believe
is unfair. I think 1it's easy for us all to sit back
now with benefit of the record, with case law at our
fingertips and muse over the possible decisions and
strategies that could have been entered into. But we all
faced on that morning rather the heat of the battle. That

is, the evidence that had gone in. The jury was waiting.

We had Mr. Van Camp who I assume even to this day is

-75- App. 21



reluctant to sdait that he did snything wroﬁg.
But es I noted, Mr. -- os I previously stated,

Mr. Williems is exparienced snd respected. He is criticized

by you for failing to subpoens witnssses. I heve no ides
how those uitngsses or what witnesses could have appesred
to have defeated the State's cese. He's criticized for
not having.prepared 8 defense to the ;nended-charge.
Again, the charge was only the emended, only chenged one
of the intent sections which I presume Qr. Williams would
have had to slter an srgusment but there was probably no
difference in the evidence it would have produced, that
would have been produced. He's criticized for not
pursuing an alibi. I have no ides what 8libi Mr. Van Camp
could come uvp with. In view of the evidence thst would
even be remotely believable.

And Mr. Williems was right this morning when he
said that st some point courts do look at sentencing as
to whether there is remorse. And how the defendant is
desling with the crime committed. And had Mr. Van Camp
testified that he wasn't there or thet he was somevhers
else or weas doing something else, that would have been, I
believe so unbelievable that it would not have been bought

by esnybody.
] .
In your brief yov clsim that Mr. Williems feiled

to establish rapport. I frankly don't know what thast sesns,

1 r_ ]
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How to measure what rapport is sdequate or how msuch

rapport is sufficient or how more or less repport would

have iaproved the cese. We all have been confronted in

our practices, st lesst those of us who did defense work,
They

with clients who don't want to ac;ept reality.
still think that what they did was sonehow Justifieble.

I think the perfect example of this as an aside
is quite often people who are charged with c¢criminal
gambling. They don't understand that gambling is wrong.
They don't see that they're doing anything wrong. They're
reluciant to adait they're doing something wrong because
they’ve got all of these arguments how stockbrokers are
nothing more than professional gamblers end so I'a taking
bets on football games and so forth snd sometimes as
defense lawyers you do have to make them see the reality.

And I would imagine that was & tough decision
in the morning becsuse I can't imagine thpt Kr. Willisms
could have done snything but try to persusde his client
that it was in Nr, Ven Cemp's best interest to sccept the
ples bargain rether than fece the elmost sure conviction,
th; sure conviction on the false imprisonment snd »
substantisl likelihood of & conviction of & very serious

forty-yesr felony. _ .
You cited State v. Dugsn end I resd that cease

end I sgree with you that Dugan cites & lot of language

A B
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sbout ell the rights and everything that's supposed to go
on during a plea hearing, but as I slso noted earlier,
Dugan decided that the feilure, the triel court's refussl

to sllow a withdrawal was proper.

It msy not be necesssry but I believe, it may not
be necessary vnder the ceses, bdut I believe defore &
withdrawsl is » reasonable possibility, before withdrawal
should be ressonsbly granted, rasther there should be some
indication that the uvltimste outcome of the cese will be
sffected. Thst there would be e more moderste sentence,
that there were facts thet needed to be explsined, so
forth and so on. There should be some underlying contentior
that if the case starts over, Mr. Van Camp would be
exonerated or if he isn't exonersted, there wouvid be &
different ovtcome in the penslty.

Mr. Ven Cemp's new attorney has carefully
exsmined oll the relevant ceses, found all of the language
which puts Mr. Williess' actions and my sctions in question.
BJt there has not been the slightest cleim today that
anything would chenge. That Mr. Geurts would somshow
testify it never happened. That s8ll the, thst there uould‘
be & greet alibi witness that would esteblish that Jerry
Van Camp hes s double or something that would sffect the

outcome. And, sgein, thast's -- we're talking sbout the

folse iaprisonment. The crime for which Mr. Van Camp

- App. 24
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entered his plea.
It's mentioned also that Mr. Williams did not

properly go over the presentence report with Mr. Van Caap.
Nothing was brought up about that today. I did note on
the sentencing hearing, however, that Mr. Williams made
substantisl references to it. And the sentencing hearing,
in fact, lasted more than two hours because the defense
called six separate witnesses to stand up for Mr. Van Camp
and his reputation.

And, frankly, as I noted at that time, Mr. Van
Camp had an excellent reputation. A man with no criminsl
past, 8 man who appsrently waes a pillar in the community
of Freedom, Wisconsin, who for some inexplicable reason
apparently did 8 dumb thing. A dumb thing that was very
herrowing and threatening and so forth but a thing
nonetheless.

I believe also that Mr. Ven Camp is attempting to
delay this process. The trisl was heard substantially
after the initisl charges. Then before we have the
s2zntencing there was some question about Mr. Van Camp’'s
mzntal status. So he was not sentenced until July 21,
1995. So that's several months after the plea.

In short, despite what you've represented here,
Ms. Robinson, I don't believe Mr. Van Cemp did not under-

stand what he was doing on April 19, 1995. He wes

-79-

App 25




reluctent to do it. He wes reluctent I think to sdait

*that he icreued up big time. And it's, o3 1 said at the

outset, it's true that he may not be 8 sophisticeted men
when it comes to legal mstters and thet his contects with
the legal system before were nonexistent, but he's o
meture man. He's 8 successful businessman in » business
which is competitive, requires being shrewd, being,
knowing when to be ceutious, when to taske risks end ell
of those things. And he's s ban who aveiled himself of
every opportunity to defend himself in this cese.

So it may be ultimstely that the courts will find
that my colloquy did not cover ss much deteil eos
recommended. Hindsight is & very valuable asset we 811 °

know. But I believe boased on wmy observations of Mr. Van

- Cemp having sst through the preliainary hesring, my
Xnowledge of Mr. Willisms end his lbilities, hsving

- - el

sat through the triel, having sat nnd resd sll of the
transcripts over egsin, I believe that Mr. Ven Cemp entered
his ples knowingly snd voluntarily. That does not sean
that he necesssrily understood every nvance of what
this sll mesnt or thst whet exactly s resd-in could do
or hov that would reflect, but oversll, he entered it
knowingly snd volunterily.

I believe now he wants to withdraw the plee

becauvse of, frankly, his unwillingness to sccept the

lIIIIIIIIIIII’EIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII!E
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penalties. We've been delaying these penalties now well

- into what should be the second year. Mr. Rottier hes 2

served his penalty. Mr. Geurts has been punished by sall
of these delays and I know you told me at the outset it's
not & bslancing test and perhaps from s legal standpoint
you're right.

On the other hand, I do think at some point the
rights of others have to be looked st in the process of
making legal decisions. And I do think that Mr. Geurts'
rights have not been fully taken care of in this matter
becsuse the msn who tormented him, who terrorized hia
for a period of several hours in 8 car way back in
September of 1994 is still looking for more justice.

And as I indicated, I don't know if & jury would
have convicted Mr. Van Camp of kidnapping. That last bit

of intent would have posed I think significant problems

for the prosecution. But I believe the evidence on the

false imprisonment was overwhelming and that these
technical objections are just delaying the ultimate

disposition of the case.

And for those reasons I'm going to deny the motiong.

And let matters proceed as they should.
MS. ROBINSON: May I make a motion?

THE COURT: Sure.
MS. ROBINSOMN: Your Honor, I would move the Court

-81- __ App. 27
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for lesve to supplement the rscord. I did take as carefyl

notes es I could of your decision but it appesrs thst,

end I know the Court is careful in the expectation thet I

do intend to appesl the case, and the Court knows that

from the previous record, but you did, when you said that
you didn't know ebout the underlying thinking or whetever
and that the resuvlt would be different and you had not
seen in my motion in which I tried to et least sllude to
each issue thst I would need to reise on sy appesl, you
did not see anything in regsrd to what his defense would
be which was consistent with what you had ssked me up
there and the notion of how things would have been differeng.
So my motion is this. I'd like to ask the Court
for leave to supolement the record if, end I'11 file
either s, very shortly s short triel brief or something
that I -- because it's kind of a novel ghing -- the best I
can to supplement it so that I do have s response to that.
The resson I didn't do thet ﬁefore wes because
of sll the cases I had presented on the subject I have
never seen one in which the concept of hermless error
was imposed end essentislly the Court has'ruled here
todsy looking st 8 practicsl side of this s the Appellete
Court often does, looking at -- but es they often do of

cesses generslly, but on this pasrticuler issve, snd we're

telking sbout constitutionsl rights. I've never seen thea

A IR B
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to find it harmless so I didn't put in snything about

the practical resuvlt of how this would have been different
or as you said before how he was prejudiced. For example,
I would say if »a defqndant appears at trial and the
attorney says they've changed the charge, I have no defense.
If in his mind he believes that, I'd say at that point

the defendant doesn't have an sttorney. Okay?

THE COURTY: Well, I'm not going to ellow you to
supplement the record. I think, first of all, we're
essentially replicating it becsuse then you put up this,
that or another thing. Then Mr. Pelrine would have the
opportunity to do that.

I think you have had the opportunity in preparing
for this case to put in what you thought was important.

And, sgain, I'm struck with just the simple
reality that regardless of what Mr. Williams or any other
lawyer could have or would have done the false indrisonment
case was as strong 8 prosecution case as I've ever seen
in some thirty years of legal work. So though Mr. -- had
that charge only been the only charge and Mr. Van Camp
was, pled to it only becaus2 he was threatened with the
forty years really doesn't have any merit as far as I'm
concernad. So I don't think there's anything more to

be sdded to this record. I think it's time for this case

App. 29
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to go forward.

MR. PELRINE: VYour Honor, if 1 may, not to add
any facts or anything but in the event thst nuvance or
perception is missing from the printed word, Ms. Robinson
just gave her perception of what the Court's legsl besis

for its ruling was and 1 didn't necessarily hesr it the

same way. I'm not ssking you to clarify. What you said

is what you said. But I believe from my perspective

what I heard was 8 statement of the Court consistent with

the ruling of Bsngert es to what rights the defendant

was entitled to have. What rights he either asvailed

himself of or was @ade aware of and which he had in his
pessession at the time you acceoted his plea. And that
while many other concerns and odservetions were made by
the Court, I'm not willing to accept that I hesrd the
legsl ruling that Ms. Robinson just cheracterized.

THE COURT: Well, I don't know. Again, the

Appellete Courts ere probably going to look at how you

" chereacterize them 8s to whet I've said. I believe the

Bangert test was met and that was my intention snd I
didn't specifically sey that in that many words but ]
believed it was met.

MR. PELRINE: Thank you.
MS. ROBINSOM: 1It's the Court's position that

the Bongert test is the test today in Wisconsin? 1 mesn

o~ App. 30
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is that --
THE COURT: Well, Hs. Robinson, st some point

you have to sccept what I've sasid and not try and creste

more record or more error.

(The hesring concluded at 11:14 »s.m.)

STATE OF WISCOKSIN )
) ss.

COUNTY OF EAU CLAIRE )
I, Jan ¥, Betthauser, Registered Professional

Reporter, do hereshy certify that I reported the foregoing matter
and that the foregoing transcript, consisting of BS pajes, has
been carefully compared by me with my stenographic notes as

taken by me in machine shorthand and by me thereafter transcribed
to the best of my ability, and that it is s true and correct

transcript of the proceecings had in said matter to the bdest

of my knowledge.

Dated this ﬁ—_’l(day of &ﬂ& , 1996,

Registered Professional Reporter

L// —  -85-
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COPY

STATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT EAU CLAIRE COUNTY
Branch 2
STATE OF WISCONSIN, -
Plaintiff, - -
vs. - JURY TRIAL
(DAY TWO)
GERALD J. VAN CAMP, -

CASE NO. 94CF329
Defendant. -

M W e o R A A A R L e Em R e L A ER R N A B N R R M e W MR e e e W e wm T M M wm AR e Mk e e S A e e T A e W e

The above-entitled matter coming on te be heard
before the Honorable Eric J. Wahl, judge of the above-named court,
with a jury, on the 19th day of April, 1995, commencing at the
hour of 9:05 a.m., in the Courthouse in the City of Eau Claire,
County of Eau Claire, State of Wisconsin.

APPEARANTCES

RAYMOND L. PELRINE, District Attorney, Eau Claire
County Courthouse, 721 Oxford Avenue, Eau Claire, Wisconsin, 54703

appearing as counsel for and on behalf of the State.
OWEN R. WILLIAMS, Attorney at Law, P.0. Box 417,

Amefy, Wisconsin, 54001, appearing as counsel for and on behalf

of the defendant.
GERALD J. VAN CAMP, the defendant, appearing

personally.

JAN M. BETTHAUSER
Court Reporter, B8ranch 2
Eau Claire County Courthouse
721 Oxford Avenue
Eau Claire, W1 54703
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PROCEEDINGS

MR. WILLIAMS: Your Honor, we request that you
convene outside the presence of the jury. The defeadant
is present this morning. The District Attorney and I have
reached an agreement which if sccepted by you will obviate
the need for further proceedings in front of the jury. We
have 8 negotiated plea to present.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. WILLIAMS: Judge, the negotiated plea that
I believe we have is as follows. In return for the
defendant withdrawing his plea of not guilty to count two
of the Information, which is false impr{;onment, and
entering his plea of no contest to the charge, the District
Attorney has agreed to move to dismiss count one, the
kidnapping. We jointly recommend to you that this charge
be read in for purposes of sentencing. We will jointly
recommend to you a presentence investigation be ordered
on the count two, that bond continue pending that and
that the matter be returned for sentence. At the time
of sentence each party is free Lo sigue that which they
believe is appropriate.

MR. PELRINE: That's my understanding as well,

Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mr. Van Camp, is that your understandin#?

THE DEFENDANT: It is, Your Honor. That's what 1

S App. 33
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have to do, I guess.

THE COURT: Well, I want to be sure you know yob

don't have to do anything.

THE DEFENDANT: I know. But it's in their hands
so I'll hsve to sccept it, Judge, Your Honorl To the best
knowledge with my lawyer.

THE COURT: All right. Anybody threaten you or
promise you anything to get you to do this?

THE DEFENDANT: No.

THE COURT: You understand that by pleading no
contest to a charge, that's the same as a guilty plea as
far as what we're doing here? -

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah.

THE COQURT: Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: There's nothing 1 can do about it.

It's okay.

THE COURT: 1 want to know, Mr. Van Camp, if you
understand what I'm telling you.

THE DEFENDANT: I understand, yesh.

THE COURT: And you vunderstand that though there

may be some agreement or discussion between the District

Attorney and your lawyer about sentencing that if I see

fit, I can sentence up to and including the maximum sentence

Do you understand that?

THE ODEFENDANT: Yes, I suppose.

-3 — App. 3%
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THE COURT: 1Is there any -- I don't want you to

enter anything under pressure or duress here, Mr, Van Camp.

I want you to -- do you need more time to talk it over
with Mr. Williams or are you satisfied that won't do any-

thing?
THE DEFENDANT: I don't think that will do any-

thing at the time.

THE COURT: Do you know what the charges are that
you, the false imprisonment charge, that's been explainad
to you?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. How do you plead to that
éﬁérge, Mr. Van Camp?

THE DEFENDANT: No contest.

THE COURT: Okay. And like I said earlier, you
understand for purposes of this hearing that's the same
as & guilty plea? Is that correct?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Van Camp, I will sccept

your plea of no contest, find you guilty thereon. We will
dismiss count one of the Amended Information but have it
read in for purposes of sentencing. I will order a
presentence investigation.

MR. PELRINE: Ypur Honor, --

THE COURT: VYes.
i 1 ]|
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MR. PELRINE: Excuse me., But becsuse this is »
felony and because of my detection of at lesst in some, [
believe reticence of Mr. Van Camp, could the Court please
go through the elements of the offense and make sure that
the defendant understands those as part of his plea?

THE COURT: All right. Probably s good idea.

Mr. Van Camp, do you understand that false
imprisonment, that by being charged with that, that it's
alleged that you and Mr. Rottier did feloniously and
intentionally confine Mr. Geurts? You understood that?

MR. WILLIAMS: Judge, I've explained to Mr. Van

Camp that on a2 no contest plea he neither admits nor denies
that. He is aware that that is an element of the offense.

THE COURT: That's what I am atteapting te --

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes.

THE COURT: You understand that's what they've
said you've done?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COQRT: And you understand they have said
youv did that without Mr. Geurts' consent or knowledge --

I'm sorry -- without his consent rather. You understand

that's what the State says?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes o — E——
5 App. 36 -
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THE COURT: And you understand that they said
that, the State claims that you did thet with the knowledge
that you didn't heve the lawful authority to confine
someone?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. 1Is there any question about

what's going on here this morning as far as you are concerneh?

THE DEFENDANT: Not really.

THE COURT: All right. How about May 31 for a
sentencing date?

MR. WILLIAMS: The only reservation i'd ask, Judge,
is if 1'd have a8 conflict, but if I do, if I could ceall
and ask you to reschedule that but that would seem to be
an adequate amount of -time to process the PSI and I will
have my people call yours then and confer with Mr. Pelrine
if I have any conflict with that day.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. WILLIAMS: Or I can get on the phone right
away and tell you.

THE COURT: Would it be more expedient when yov
get back to your office for you and Mr. Pelrine to confer
with Bonnie and get a date?

MR. PELRINE: The problem 1 have with that is as

soon as I'm able to clear my desk I'm supposed to be at a

conference right now in La Crosse.
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THE COURT: All right. Well, why don’t we --

MR. WILLIAMS: It'll take me about two minutes to
get my people on the line here, Judge, and confirm that,
if that's acceptable.

THE COURT: Do you have a lot of people?

MR. WILLIAMS: Well, it seems that way when I
look at fhe overhead, '

THE COURT: When you write out the paychecks.

MR. WILLIAMS: I'm number one on trial in
Washburn on the 31st, Judge.

THE COURT: How about June 2nd?

MR. WILLIAMS: All day final hearing on a divorce
in Barron, Judge.

THE COURT: June 5th?

MR. WILLIAMS: What time would you be able to
ctonsider that on the 5th, Judge, late in the day?

THE COURT: I could.

MR. WILLIAMS: 1If you could &8s late as possible.

THE COURT: Three-thirty?

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes.

THE COURT: Well, we'll go ahead and continue bond.
I suppose the next step is to bring the jury back and

tell them what happened.

(The jury entered the courtroom and the following

proceedings were had:)
1 1

7. = App. 38



——

LY YTTRT FITEY

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

THE COURT: Well, I have news and I'll leave it
up to you to decide whethér it's good or bad news. First,
I apologize for promising to get you in here right at
nine o'clock but the news is that this case has been
settled. Mr. Van Camp has entered s ples pursuant to an
agreement with the District Attorney's office and so your
services are no longer required on this case.

Now, if you have questions about what's happened
or anything, I can meet you back in the jury room in a few
minutes and attempt to answer any questions that you have
about what you've done here or seen here. If you have no
questions, you're excused with our thanks.

(The jury was excused.)

MR. PELRINE: Just one little housekeeping thing,
Judge. Since I'm sure the clerk's office always shudders
when I have the prospect of supporting things like this
enlargement, do I have Court and counsel's permission to
simply withdraw them at this time s¢ the clerk doesn’'t have
to worry about what to do with that?

MR.WILLIAMS: I have no objection.

THE COURT: Fine. 1 presume we don't want the
blackboard preserved either.

MR. WILLIAMS: No, no, Judge.

(The hearing concluded at 9:18 a.m.)
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